IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

NO.2008-CA-00126

CLAIBORNE COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI AND THE CLAIBORNE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

APPELLANTS

VS.

CAUSE NO. 2008-CA-00126

EDDIE RAY PARKER

APPELLEE

BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CLAIBORNE COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

VANGELA M. WADE (MSB NO. ASHLEY E. CANNADY (MSB NO. OGLETREE, DEAKINS, NASH, SMOAK & STEWART, P.C. 100 CONCOURSE, SUITE 204 1052 HIGHLAND COLONY PARKWAY RIDGELAND, MISSISSIPPI 39157 TELEPHONE: (601) 360-8444 TELECOPIER: (601) 360-0995 vangela.wade@odnss.com ashley.cannady@odnns.com

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

NO.2008-CA-00126

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- 1. Whether the Circuit Court Erred in Overturning the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker:
 - A. The Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker was Supported by Substantial Evidence.
 - B. The Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker was Neither Arbitrary Nor Capricious.
 - C. The Board of Supervisors Acted Within Its Scope and Power to Legislate, Administer and Adjudicate Employment Matters in Claiborne County Government.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On April 4, 2006, Fire Chief Kelvin Shaifer (hereinafter, "Chief Shaifer") terminated Appellee Eddie Ray Parker (hereinafter, "Parker") effective April 5, 2006, for insubordination. (R. 000005, 00075, 00085, 000124). Thereafter, pursuant to Rule VI of the Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi (hereinafter, "Policies and Procedures"), Parker requested a hearing before the Claiborne County Employee Grievance Committee. (R. 000005).

On April 14, 2006, the Grievance Committee determined Chief Shaifer lacked "sufficient documentation or evidence of insubordination" to terminate Parker (R. 000005, 00076). On April 18, 2006, Parker requested an "audience with the Board to resolve the matter." (R. 000005, 00077). On May 1, 2006, the Board commenced the hearing of Parker's appeal of his termination, but adjourned at his request to obtain the assistance of a lawyer. (R. 000006, 000083, 000084). On or about July 14, 2006, the Board reconvened the hearing and heard testimony from Parker and Chief Shaifer. (R. 000096). In addition to oral testimony, the Board considered the Affidavit of Allen Burks (R. 000083); the written statement of Chief Shaifer (R. 000085 - 86); the written statement of R.P. Segrest (R. 000087); and the report of Chief Calvin Jackson of the Port Gibson Police Department (R. 000088 - 90). After the Board took the matter under consideration.

On August 1, 2006, the Board unanimously upheld Parker's termination. (R. 000006, 000091). Parker filed a Notice of Appeal in the Circuit Court of Claiborne County, Mississippi on or about August 10, 2006. (R. 000092). On November 10, 2007, Parker filed the Bill of

¹ The October 1989 Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi refers to the three-member ad-hoc committee as "Appeals Committee" and "Personnel Committee." However, the term "Grievance Committee" is used by all parties and is reflected as such in the Bill of Exceptions filed before the lower

Exceptions, as the record of the Board's decision, and requested that the Circuit Court overturn the Board's decision to terminate him. (R. 000005). The Board filed its response to Parker's Bill of Exceptions on January 17, 2007. (R. 000107). On December 12, 2007, the Circuit Court overturned the Board's decision to terminate Parker and awarded judgment against Claiborne County for Parker's full back pay and benefits. (R. 000204). The Circuit Court did not order Parker's reinstatement. *Id*.

Aggrieved by the Circuit Court's decision, Claiborne County, Mississippi and its Board of Supervisors perfected this appeal on January 11, 2008. (R. 000206).

II. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Prior to his termination, Claiborne County employed Parker as a fireman. Pursuant to the fire department's standard operating guidelines, County firemen are required to maintain clean or close shaven faces, to allow the seal of the self contain breathing apparatuses (SCBA) to fit properly to the face, to avoid smoke inhalation and injury. (R. 000085). However, Parker refused to adhere to the safety guidelines, which resulted in written and verbal reprimands from Chief Shaifer. In an effort to compromise with Parker, a veteran fire fighter, Chief Shaifer offered him a choice of shaving his beard or "cut his beard with clippers and keep it neat and professional looking, but he refused." (R. 000085). Chief Shaifer warned Parker that his failure to comply with the safety guidelines could result in termination of his employment with the County. Still, Parker refused to comply with either option. Instead, he offered Chief Shaifer a physician's slip indicating that he had a skin condition that became aggravated by shaving. Chief Shaifer was concerned with Parker's safety as well as that of other firemen, who might be required to risk their own safety, in the event Parker succumbed to smoke inhalation resulting from ill fitting SCBA.

On the morning of April 4, 2006, James Miller, former Claiborne County Administrator ("Miller"), and Chief Shaifer met with Parker to discuss his noncompliance with the fire department's policy. (R. 000085). However, the meeting seemed to increase Parker's anger with Chief Shaifer for requiring that he adhere to workplace rules.

When the meeting concluded, Chief Shaifer returned to the fire station and found Phil Segrest ("Segrest") waiting to meet with him. (R. 000085). Chief Shaifer invited Segrest, a private citizen and consultant to the County fire department, into his office and closed the door. (R. 000085, 000087). The two men began to discuss fire department issues. (R. 000085, 000087). They heard a loud beating on the door. (R. 000085, 000087). Before Chief Shaifer could respond. Parker swung open the door and burst into the office. (R. 000085, 000087). Chief Shaifer asked Parker why was he beating on the door; Parker responded that he was "pissed off". (R. 000085, 000087, 000088). Chief Shaifer responded, "Ok; what can I do for you[?]" (R. 000085, 000087, 000088). To which Parker responded that he wanted to talk with him. (R. 000085, 000087, 000088). Chief Shaifer, confirming the obvious, responded that he was meeting with Segrest but would speak with him afterwards. (R. 000085, 000087, 000088). Parker then asked if he could go home and get something. (R. 000085, 000087). Immediately after Parker left the room, Chief Shaifer asked Segrest to leave the premises, because he did not know what to do should Parker return because of his "rude, loud and disrespectful demeanor." (R. 000085).

After Segrest departed the fire station, Chief Shaifer went to his own truck to look for some paperwork. (R. 000085). At that point, Calvin Jackson, the Police Chief for the City of Port Gibson, Mississippi ("Chief Jackson"), drove "really fast" onto the parking lot. (R. 000085). Chief Jackson told Chief Shaifer that he had received a call from his office that Parker "was on his way home to get a gun and kill [Chief Shaifer]." (R. 000085, 000088, 000089).

Chief Shaifer asked if he knew who made the call; Chief Jackson responded that he did not know. (R. 000085). At that moment, Parker's brother, Julius Parker, drove into the parking lot. (R. 000085). Chief Shaifer asked Julius Parker who called the police; Julius Parker responded, "I did." (R. 000083, 000085). Within seconds, Parker's mother arrived, followed by Parker. (R. 000085). Parker exited his vehicle and moved toward Chief Shaifer, his mother jumped in front of him, and Parker yelled, "Mama that s-n of a b---h is going to respect me." (R. 000085). At that point, Chief Shaifer went back into the fire station but left soon after because he did not feel safe. (R. 000085). Later that day, he went to the police station to ask for a report regarding the incident and then went to see the Claiborne County Sheriff, Frank Davis ("Sheriff Davis"), to report the incident. (R. 000085).

On the following day, April 5, 2006, Chief Shaifer telephoned Sheriff Davis to request that he send a deputy to the station, because he plan to terminate Parker. (R. 000085). Wary of Parker's reaction based on the events of the previous day, Chief Shaifer did not want to take a chance that "something would happen that would cause injuries or death to either party." (R. 000085 - 86). Sheriff Davis and his deputies stood by while Chief Shaifer gave Parker the letter of termination. (R. 000086). The termination letter, dated April 4, 2006, indicated that Chief Shaifer terminated Parker because of his behavior of that day stating:

"Your behavior Tuesday, April 4, 2006 will not be tolerated here at Claiborne County Fire Department. You displayed the highest form of insubordination I have every [sic] seen by disrespecting Mr. Phil Segrest and myself while we were in a private meeting. Your behavior was so horrific that it terrified Mr. Segrest, as well as, your co-workers. . . ."

² Chief Shaifer's concerns reflected the events of March 17, 2006, when a former County employee Carl Brandon murdered County Attorney Allen Burrell on the city street and shot into the home of then County Administrator James E. Miller, then proceeded to the County Road Department where he shot and caused near fatal injury to a Secretary, Loretha Rollins-Porter. Each of these persons were involved in a previous County case, *Brandon v. Claiborne County, Mississippi*, 828 So.2d 202 (Miss. Ct. App. 2002), which emanated from a sexual harassment claim against Mr. Brandon that resulted the County's termination of his employment.

(R. 000075).

Thereafter, Parker requested a hearing before the Grievance Committee, pursuant to Rule VI of the Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi. (R. 000095). The Grievance Committee is a three-person committee formed by the Board. (R. 000054). The members are managers or supervisory level employees asked to sit for a specified period of time or for a specific employee grievance matter. The Grievance Committee makes recommendations but does not have the authority to take action impacting ultimate employment decisions. Only the Board can make final decisions regarding hiring, promoting, compensating, disciplining and terminating County employees. On April 14, 2006, the Grievance Committee determined, "the documentation and information presented to us from Mr. Parker's file is not enough documentation or evidence to support insubordination (unwillingness to submit to authority)³ in this particular incident. The grieved employee is always awarded the option to request a hearing with the Board of Supervisors within 10 days after having met with the Grievance Committee." (R. 000076). In a letter dated April 18, 2006, to Mr. Charles Shorts, President of the Board of Supervisors, Parker stated that he believed Chief Shaifer planned to appeal the Grievance Committee's finding and requested an "audience" with the Board to resolve the matter." (R. 000077).

On May 1, 2006, the Board commenced the hearing of Parker's appeal of his termination, but adjourned upon his request to obtain the assistance of a lawyer. (R. 000083 - 84). On or about July 14, 2006, the Board reconvened the hearing and heard testimony from Parker and Chief Shaifer. (R. 000096). In addition to the oral testimony, the Board considered the Affidavit

³ The Grievance Committee apparently adopted is own definition of "insubordination" in order to excuse Parker's clear disrespect of both Chief Shaifer and Mr. Segrest, a private citizen. In fact, the Policies and Procedures do not specifically define "insubordination." However, the Policies and Procedures indicate that disciplinary actions may result from "[w]antonly offensive conduct of language toward the public, a superior, or fellow employees." (R. 000047).

of Allen Burkes (R. 000083); the April 4, 2006, written statement of Chief Shaifer (R. 000085); the written statement of R.P. Segrest (R. 000087); and the report of Officer Calvin Jackson of the Port Gibson Police Department (R. 000088 - 89).

On August 1, 2006, the Board unanimously upheld Parker's termination.⁴ (R. 000091). The Board's Order states:

Claiborne County has zero tolerance for acts or threats of violence, appearance of violence, insubordination or aggression towards Supervisors or Co-Workers. The County workplace will be free of violence, aggression, insubordination as far the County Administration can control. Based on this and the underlying facts of the circumstance surrounding the termination of Mr. Eddie Ray Parker [t]he Board upholds the termination as its final decision."

(R. 000091).

⁴ As a rule, the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors hears and discusses personnel issues involving employee disciplinary and termination matters only during executive session. These issues are confidential and therefore are not placed on the minutes of the Board as all minutes are made available to the public. During open session the Board announces it will hear the matter in executive session. Upon concluding discussions or taking action, the Board ends the executive session and announces only its decision in open session. In some instances, like that of the Appellee, the Board may take matters under advisement following the discussion in executive session and render a subsequent decision.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

In its appellate review, this Court, like the Circuit Court below, is bound by the substantial evidence standard of review for matters on appeal from the decisions of the County Board of Supervisors and other administrative boards. In this case, after considering the totality of the evidence and testimony presented, the Board of Supervisors upheld Parker's termination.

The Board considered oral testimony of Parker and Chief Shaifer as well as all of the statements and documents that Parker filed in support of his Bill of Exceptions. Thus, the Board's decision was based on the totality of the evidence presented, and it reflected deliberate focus and purpose founded in the need to have a workplace free of violence and inappropriate aggression that could lead to violence. This is evidenced in the Board's statement in support of its unanimous decision to terminate Parker:

Claiborne County has zero tolerance for acts or threats of violence, appearance of violence, insubordination or aggression towards Supervisors or Co-workers. The County workplace will be free of violence, aggression, insubordination as far as the County Administration can control. Based on this and the underling facts and the circumstance surrounding the termination of Mr. Eddie Ray Parker, the Board up holds the termination as its final decision.

Parker claimed that he never threatened Chief Shaifer, however, the record is replete with evidence that Parker engaged in insubordinate and aggressive behavior resulting in termination of his employment. As such, it is clear the Board of Supervisors' decision to terminate the Parker is supported by substantial evidence, and Parker cannot meet his burden of proof.

ARGUMENT

I. STANDARD OF REVIEW

When reviewing a board's decision, a reviewing court can only consider the case as made by the bill of exceptions. Wilkinson County Board of Supervisors v. Quality Farms, Inc., 767 So. 2d at 1011 (citing Stewart v. City of Pascagoula, 206 So. 2d 325, 328 (Miss. 1968)). When appealing a decision of a board of supervisors, Miss. Code Ann. § 11-51-75 (1972) states that the person aggrieved "may embody the facts, judgment and decision of the board of supervisors in a bill of exception." The circuit court is bound by the record made before the board. Wilkinson County, supra, 767 So. 2d at 1009.

Moreover, the law is well settled that on appeal of an order from a board of supervisors, the reviewing court shall not disturb the board's decision unless it is:

- Unsupported by substantial credible evidence;
- Arbitrary or capricious;
- Beyond the board's scope or powers; or
- In violation of the aggrieved party's constitutional or statutory rights.⁵

Brandon v. Claiborne County, Mississippi, 828 So.2d 202, 205 (Miss. 2002); Ladner v. Harrison County Board of Supervisors, 793 So. 2d 637, 638 (Miss. 2001); Wilkinson County supra., 767 So. 2d 1007, 1009 (Miss. 2000) (citing Hooks v. George County, 748 So. 2d 678, 680 (Miss. 1999)). In fact, "courts may interfere only where the action of the board is arbitrary or capricious and is without support in the substantial credible evidence." Cook v. Board of Supervisors of Lowndes County, 571 So. 2d 932, 936 (Miss. 1990). "When this Court finds that the lower court has exceeded its authority in overturning [a Board's] decision, we will reverse and reinstate the [Board's] decision." Board. of Law Enforcement Officers Standards and Training v. Butler, 672 So.2d 1196, 1199 (Miss. 1996); Mississippi Commission on

⁵ Parker did not contend in either his Bill of Exception or brief before the lower court that the Board's decision violated a constitutional right. Accordingly, Appellants will not address this particular basis for

Environmental Quality v. Chickasaw County Board of Supervisors, 621 So.2d 1211, 1215 (Miss. 1993).

II. The Circuit Court Erred in Overturning the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Parker.

As appellate courts, neither this Court nor the Circuit Court stand in the shoes of fact finders. Mississippi Department of Corrections v. Harris, 831 So.2d 1190, 1192 (Miss. Ct. App. 2002). Rather, in the appellate role, both are charged with determining whether the Board could properly have evaluated the contested evidence in a manner that supports their decision. Id; Mississippi Public Service Commission v. Merchants Truck Line, Inc., 598 So.2d 778, 782 (Miss. 1992). This Court must consider only the record evidence, the same presented to the lower court, and apply the substantial evidence standard of review to determine whether the lower court erred in its decision to overturn the Board's decision to terminate Parker. Wilkinson County, supra, 767 So. 2d at 1011 (Stewart v. City of Pascagoula, 206 So. 2d 325, 328 (Miss. 1968)). The substantial evidence standard of review is not an especially large quantum. Id. In fact, it is less than a preponderance, but more than a scintilla, a idiom judicially adopted to mean a mere trace or minute amount. Id.

A. The Claiborne County Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Parker was Supported by Substantial Evidence.

When opposing views are presented to the Board, the Board sits as the trier of fact and is entitled to determine which evidence it will give the most weight. Everett v. Board of Trustees of Meridian Municipal Separate Sch. Dist., 492 So.2d 277, 283 (Miss. 1986). The Board, as the trier of fact, sits in the best position to evaluate and weigh the truthfulness of each witnesses' testimony. Andrew Jackson Life Ins. Co. v. Williams, 566 So.2d 1172, 1179 (Miss. 1990). The demeanor, tone of voice, attitude and appearance of the witnesses are inspected and reviewed by

the Board. It not only has the right and duty to determine the truth or falsity of the witnesses, but also has the right to evaluate and determine what portions of the testimony of any witness it will accept or reject. *Id.*; *Travelers Indem. Co. v. Rawson*, 222 So.2d 131, 134 (Miss. 1969). "The reviewing court cannot *substitute its judgment* for that of the [Board] or *reweigh its judgment* for that of the [Board] or reweigh the facts of the case. *Butler supra*, 672 So.2d at 1199 (emphasis added).

The Circuit Court's assertion that the Board lacked substantial evidence to uphold Parker's termination is without merit. In fact, Parker's own Bill of Exceptions established the evidence considered by the Board. As indicated in paragraph 7 of Parker's Bill of Exceptions, the Board heard from both Parker and Chief Shaifer and also considered the following:

- Affidavit of Allen Burkes;
- April 4, 2006 written statement of Kelvin Shaffer;
- Written statement of R.P. Segrest; and
- Report of Officer Calvin Jackson of the Port Gibson Police Department.

(R. 000006, 000121). It is unreasonable to contend that all of this evidence considered by the Board did not constitute substantial evidence. That the Circuit Court disagreed with or disliked the evidence considered by the Board was neither the issue nor the standard of review on appeal of the Board's decision. The lower court improperly reweighed the evidence by finding "that the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors' decision that Mr. Parker threatened Fire Chief Kelvin Shaifer, or acted in a violent or aggressive manner against Chief Shaifer or other co-workers was not supported by substantial evidence." (R. 000204). The Circuit Court, in making its decision, appeared to have created a heightened standard of review, that not only exceeded the long established standard of review set by this Court, but totally disregarded the evidence relied upon by the Board. Acknowledgment of the proper standard of review is indicated by the lower court when it states:

"[T]his court does not have the authority to second guess the Board of Supervisors to determine whether or not their decision was right or wrong. The only thing that this court can do is determine whether or not they have the authority to do what they did. In other words, whether or not they followed the law."

(T. 6)

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