### IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

### CIVIL CAUSE NO.: NO. 2008-CA-00126

# CLAIBORNE COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI AND THE CLAIBORNE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPELLANTS

VS.

EDDIE RAY PARKER, APPELLEE

**APPELLEE'S BRIEF** 

# APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CLAIBORNE COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

.

i

į

i

Amy D. Saling MSB No.: Waller & Waller, Attorneys Post Office Box 4 220 South President Street Jackson, Mississippi 39205 (601) 354-5252 Attorney for the Appellee

#### **CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES**

#### **CIVIL CAUSE NO.: 2008-CA-00126**

# CLAIBORNE COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI AND THE CLAIBORNE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, APPELLANTS

#### VS.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES
<u>STATEMENT OF THE CASE</u>
1. Procedural History2
2. Statement of the Facts
I. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT
<u>V. ARGUMENT</u>
1. Standard of Review
<ol> <li>The Circuit Court did not Err in Overturning the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors Decision to Terminate Parker</li></ol>
<ul> <li>A. The Board of Supervisors Acted outside Its Scope and Power to Legislate, Administer and Adjudicate Employment Matters in Claiborne County Government</li></ul>
B. The Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker was not Supported by Substantial Evidence
C. The Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker was Arbitrary and Capricious14
<u>. CONCLUSION</u>
ERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

# TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

7 7

• •

.

.

,

ŧ

1

İ,

CASES: A & F Properties, LLC v. Madison County Bd. of Sup'rs, 933 So.2d 296 (Miss. 2006)
Barnes v. Board of Supervisors, 553 So.2d 508 (Miss.1989)
Board of Law Enforcement Officers Standards & Training v. Butler, 672 So.2d 1196 (Miss.1996)
Board of Supervisors of Clay County v. McCormick et al., 207 Miss. 216, 42 So.2d 177 (1949)9,11
Bobbitt v. The Orchard, Ltd., 603 So.2d 356 (Miss. 1992)10
Hooks v. George County, 748 So.2d 678 (Miss. 1999)
Johnson v. Ferguson, 435 So.2d 1191 (Miss.1983)
Ladner v. Harrison County Bd. of Sup'rs, 793 So.2d 637 (Miss. 2001)9
McIntosh v. Amacker, 592 So.2d 525 (Miss. 1991)
Mississippi State Department of Health v. Southwest Mississippi Regional Medical Center, 580 So. 2d 1328 (Miss. 1991)14
Perry v. Sears, Roebuck & Co., 508 So.2d 1086, 1088 (Miss. 1987)10
Senseney v. Mississippi Power Co., 914 So.2d 1225 (Miss.Ct.App. 2005)10
Southwest Mississippi Regional Medical Center v. Lawrence, 684 So.2d 1257, 1264 (Miss. 1996)10
Thornton v. Wayne County Election Comm'n,272 So.2d 298 (Miss. 1973)
Wilkinson County Bd. of Supervisors v. Quality Farms, Inc., 767 So.2d 1007 (Miss. 2000)
OTHER AUTHORITY:

Miss.Code Ann. § 11-51-75 (1972)	8	3
----------------------------------	---	---

## **I. STATEMENT OF ISSUES**

- 1. The Circuit Court did Not Err in Overturning the Claiborne County Board of Supervisor's Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker;
  - A. The Board of Supervisors Acted Outside Its Scope and Power to Legislate, Administer and Adjudicate Employment Matters in Claiborne County Government.
  - B. The Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker was not Supported by Substantial Evidence.
  - C. The Board of Supervisors' Decision to Terminate Eddie R. Parker was Arbitrary and Capricious.

i

#### **II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

#### 1. **PROCEDURAL HISTORY**

Lieutenant Eddie Ray Parker, worked for many years with the Claiborne County Fire Department. On or about April 5, 2006, the Appellant was fired from his employment with the Claiborne County Fire Department for alleged insubordination. (R. 000075, RE. 5).

Pursuant to Rule VI of the Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi, Lt. Parker appealed the decision to fire him to the three-member personnel committee (also known as the "Grievance Committee"). On April 14, 2006, The Personnel Committee found that "the documentation and information presented to us from Mr. Parker's file is not enough documentation or evidence to support insubordination (unwillingness to submit to authority) in this particular incident."(R. 000076, RE. 6).

On May 1, 2006, the Board of Supervisors commenced a hearing regarding the Mr. Parker's termination, but adjourned upon his request to obtain assistance of counsel. On or about July 14, 2006, the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors reconvened the hearing, and heard from Eddie Ray Parker and Chief Kelvin Shaifer regarding Mr. Parker's termination. In addition, the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors considered the Affidavit of Allen Burkes, the April 4, 2006, written statement of Kelvin Shaifer, the written statement of R. P. Segrest, and the report of Officer Calvin Jackson of the Port Gibson Police Department.

In a unanimous decision, the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors upheld Mr. Parker's termination on August 1, 2006. (R. 000091, RE. 19). On or about August 10, 2006, Eddie Ray Parker, filed a Notice of Appeal with the Claiborne County Circuit Clerk. (R. 000003, RE. 1). The Bill of Exceptions was subsequently filed with the Court on November 10, 2007, as the record of

the Board's decision, and requested that the Circuit Court to overturn the Board's decision to terminate him. The Board filed its response to Parker's Bill of Exception on January 17, 2007. (R. 000107, RE. 28). On December 12, 2007, the Circuit Court overturned the Board's decision to terminate Parker and awarded judgment against Claiborne County for Parker's full back pay and benefits. (R. 000204-205, RE. 41-42).

Claiborne County, Mississippi, and its Board of Supervisors perfected their appeal on January 11, 2008. (R. 000206, RE. 43).

#### 2. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

÷

ŧ

ŝ

i

Eddie Ray Parker is a veteran fire fighter employed by Claiborne County, Mississippi. He worked his way through the department and achieved the rank of Lieutenant. (R. 000075, RE. 5). The chief of the fire department, Kelvin Shaifer did not like the fact that Parker had a beard. (R. 000085, RE. 15). After Shaifer warned Parker that his failure to shave his beard could result in termination his employment, Parker produced a physician's statement stating that he could not keep his beard in compliance with Shaifer's demands because of a skin condition. (R. 000086, RE. 16).

On April 4, 2006, Shaifer and James Miller, former Claiborne County Administrator, met with Parker regarding his noncompliance with Shaifer's demands regarding his beard. (R. 000085, RE. 15). Upon conclusion of the meeting, Shaifer returned to the fire department and began meeting with Phil Segrest. (R. 000085, RE. 15). During the meeting, Parker knocked on the door and announced that he was "pissed." Chief Shaifer stated that he would speak with Parker later. Parker then asked if he could go home and get something. (R. 000085, RE. 15). Shaifer told Parker it was okay. (R. 000087, RE. 17).

Parker left, and when he returned, he was met by the Chief Jackson, Chief of Police of Port

Gibson, Mississippi. (R. 000085, RE. 15). Shaifer went back into the fire department, and nothing else happened. <sup>1</sup> (R. 000085, RE. 15). The following day, Shaifer fired Parker from his employment. (R. 000085-000086, RE. 15-16).

Claiborne County has adopted certain personnel policies in a policy document entitled Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi which is dated October 1, 1989. Pursuant to Rule VI of the Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi, Lt. Parker appealed the decision to fire him to the three-member personnel committee, also known as the Grievance Committee. That committee is a three-person committee created by Rule VI fo the Personnel and Policy Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi.<sup>2</sup> (R. 000095, RE. 20). The Grievance Committee found that "the documentation and information presented to us from Mr. Parker's file is not enough documentation or evidence to support insubordination (unwillingness to submit to authority) in this particular incident." (R. 000076, RE. 6). In spite of this finding, however, Claiborne County refused to reinstate Mr. Parker to his employment as mandated by the Grievance Committee. On or about April 18, 2006, Eddie Ray Parker wrote Charles Short, the President of the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors and requested an audience with the Board after it became obvious that it would not abide by the rules and regulations set forth in the Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi, and reinstate him to his employment.

÷

ł

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>In a blatant attempt to prejudice the Court, the Appellant refers to a tragic event involving the shooting of an attorney in Claiborne County. See Brief of Appellants at p. 5, n.2. Nothing regarding the tragic shooting of Mr. Burrell is contained in the record before this Court, was not a part of the record before the circuit court, and indeed was not referenced by the Board of Supervisors in its decision. The Court should therefore disregard the reference made to this event by the Appellants in their brief.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>In their brief the Appellants assert that the Grievance Committee is merely advisory in nature. However, that assertion is wholly unsupported by the record or the law in this case.

(R. 000077, RE. 7). On May 1, 2006, the Board of Supervisors commenced the hearing of Mr. Parker's appeal of his termination, but adjourned upon his request to obtain the assistance of a lawyer. On or about July 14, 2006, the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors reconvened the hearing and heard from Eddie Ray Parker, and Chief Kelvin Shaifer regarding Mr. Parker's termination. (R.000091, RE. 19). The Claiborne County Board of Supervisors considered the Affidavit of Allen Burkes, the April 4, 2006, written statement of Kelvin Shaifer, the written statement of R.P. Segrest, and the report of Officer Calvin Jackson of the Port Gibson Police Department. (R. 000091. RE. 19).

Counsel for Mr. Parker on several different occasions, namely May 25, 2006, June 7, 2006, June 21, 2006 and July12, 2006 demanded that the Appellant be reinstated to his employment pursuant to the ruling of the Personnel Committee, but Claiborne County refused. (R. 000078-000082, RE. 8-12). In a unanimous decision, the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors upheld Mr. Parker's termination on August 1, 2006. (R. 000091, RE. 19).

The decision of the Board of Supervisors was not supported by substantial evidence and was arbitrary and capricious. Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi, provide for an appeal of a grievance of an employee of Claiborne County to the Personnel Committee from an adverse decision. As shown in the Bill of Exceptions filed in this matter, the Personnel Committee found that "the documentation and information presented to us from Mr. Parker's file is not enough documentation or evidence to support insubordination (unwillingness to submit to authority) in this particular incident." Moreover, the Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi, do not provide for an appeal by a department of Claiborne County of a decision of the Personnel Board. In this instance, the appeal to the Claiborne County Board of

Ė

Ę

Supervisors was taken by the Fire Chief, Shaifer.

E

ł

L

On or about August 10, 2006, Eddie Ray Parker filed a Notice of Appeal with the Claiborne County Circuit Clerk. (R. 000003, RE. 1). The Bill of Exceptions was subsequently filed with the Court on November 10, 2007, as the record of the Board's decision, and requested that the Circuit Court to overturn the Board's decision to terminate him. (R. 000005, RE 2). The Board filed its response to Parker's Bill of Exception on January 17, 2007. (R. 000107, RE 28).

There is absolutely no evidence to support a finding that Mr. Parker committed an act of violence or threatened to carry out an act of violence towards Shaifer in any manner whatsoever, nor does any of the evidence indicate that Parker was even so much as insubordinate. Therefore, on December 12, 2007, the Circuit Court overturned the Board's decision to terminate Parker and awarded judgment against Claiborne County for Parker's full back pay and benefits. (R. 000204, RE. 41).

#### **III. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

The standard of review for this case is substantial evidence, the same standard which applies in appeals from decisions of administrative agencies and boards. The Court is to determine whether or not the acts and orders of the board are reasonable and proper or arbitrary or capricious or beyond the power of the board to make or whether they violate any constitutional right of the complaining party. In this case, the Board of Supervisors not only acted beyond the scope of their power and violated the constitutional right of the complaining party but also came to a decision which was arbitrary and capricious when deciding to terminate Eddie Ray Parker from his employment with the Claiborne County Fire Department.

Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County, Mississippi provide for an appeal of a grievance of an employee of Claiborne County to the Personnel Committee from an adverse decision. The Personnel Committee found that "the documentation and information presented to us from Mr. Parker's file is not enough documentation or evidence to support insubordination (unwillingness to submit to authority) in this particular incident." Moreover, the Personnel Policies and Procedures for Claiborne County **do not** provide for an appeal by a department of Claiborne County of a decision of the Personnel Board.

Furthermore, even if the Board of Supervisors had the authority to render a decision regarding the termination, its decision in this instance was not supported by substantial evidence.

•

·

÷

1

There is absolutely no evidence presented in the record to support a finding that Parker committed an act of violence or threatened to carry out an act of violence towards Shaifer in any manner whatsoever, nor does any of the evidence indicate that he was even so much as insubordinate. In the present case, the evidence was inadequate to support the conclusion of the Board of Supervisors.

#### IV. ARGUMENT

#### 1. Standard of Review.

Ť

ŧ

ŧ

i

A bill of exceptions is a prerequisite to vesting circuit court with subject matter jurisdiction in all appeals from county boards of supervisors, regardless of issues presented. *McIntosh v. Amacker*, 592 So.2d 525 (Miss. 1991). The standard of a circuit court's review of a bill of exceptions is well-settled. The Supreme Court has stated it as follows:

The standard of review for this case is substantial evidence, the same standard which applies in appeals from decisions of administrative agencies and boards. *Barnes v. Board of Supervisors,* 553 So.2d 508, 511 (Miss.1989). "The decision of an administrative agency is not to be disturbed unless the agency order was unsupported by substantial evidence; was arbitrary or capricious; was beyond the agency's scope or powers; or violated the constitutional or statutory rights of the aggrieved party." *Board of Law Enforcement Officers Standards & Training v. Butler,* 672 So.2d 1196, 1199 (Miss.1996). Substantial evidence has been defined as "such relevant evidence as reasonable minds might accept as adequate to support a conclusion" or to put it simply, more than a "mere scintilla" of evidence. *Johnson v. Ferguson,* 435 So.2d 1191, 1195 (Miss.1983).

Wilkinson County Bd. of Supervisors v. Quality Farms, Inc., 767 So.2d 1007, 1010 (Miss. 2000)

(quoting Hooks v. George County, 748 So.2d 678 (Miss. 1999)).

The Court in Wilkinson went on to quote Thornton v. Wayne County Election Comm'n,

272 So.2d 298, 301 (Miss. 1973), wherein the Court held:

We have repeatedly held that an appeal from a board of supervisors or city by a bill of exceptions, as is provided by Section 1195, Mississippi Code 1942 Annotated (Supp.1972), is an appeal to an appellate court and the circuit court is bound by the record made before the board.

*Thornton*, 272 So.2d at 301. Section 11-51-75, governing appeals from municipal authority judgments, requires that the circuit court shall decide such a case "as presented by the bill of exceptions as an appellate court ..." Miss.Code Ann. § 11-51-75 (1972). The statute also provides that the appealing party "may embody the facts, judgment and decision in a bill of exceptions which shall be signed by the person acting as president of the board of supervisors or of the municipal authorities." *Id.* 

Wilkinson, 767 So.2d at 1011 (Miss. 2000) (quoting Thornton v. Wayne County Election Comm'n, 272 So.2d 298, 301 (Miss. 1973)).

The Court is to "determine whether or not the acts and orders of the board are reasonable and proper or arbitrary or capricious or beyond the power of the board to make or whether they violate any constitutional right of the complaining party. *Thornton*, 272 So.2d at 301-02 (Miss. 1973) (*citing Board of Supervisors of Clay County v. McCormick et al.*, 207 Miss. 216, 42 So.2d 177 (1949)). See also Ladner v. Harrison County Bd. of Sup'rs, 793 So.2d 637, 638 (Miss. 2001); Barnes v. Bd. of Supervisors, DeSoto County, 553 So.2d 508, 511 (Miss.1989); A & F Properties, LLC v. Madison County Bd. of Sup'rs, 933 So.2d 296, 300 (Miss. 2006).

# 2. The Circuit Court Did Not Err in Overturning the Claiborne County Board of Supervisors Decision to Terminate Parker.

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